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             CITY OF STAR 
 

              STAFF MEMO 
 

 
TO:   Mayor & Council 

FROM:   Shawn L. Nickel, Planning Director and Zoning Administrator  

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2024 

RE:   Moyle Ave Traffic Signal Funding Request  

 

OWNER/APPLICANT/REPRESENTATIVE 

  

Applicant 

 

Baron Properties  

  

REQUEST 

  

Request:  Baron Properties, owners of the Star Crest Apartments and additional commercial 

property on Wildbranch Street/State Street, request the City of Star’s participation in the funding 

of the Moyle Avenue traffic signal, planned for the intersection of Moyle Avenue and W. State 

Street. As part of the development agreements for both the Star Crest Apartments (Baron) and 

the East Star River Ranch Development (Paul Larson properties), both parties are required to 

participate in the partial funding of the signal light (35% each). The remaining 30% needs to be 

funded by future residential and commercial development in the immediate area that would 

utilize the signal light in the future. Baron Properties has offered to take the lead on the signal 

project, which is fully approved by ACHD and ITD, and could start constructing in 30-90 days. 

Baron has also agreed to front an additional 15% (of the remaining 30%), leaving 15% unfunded. 

It is Baron’s request to have the City fund the remaining 15% in order to get the signal 

construction moving forward asap. The 30% (Baron and potentially the City) would then enter 

into a late-comers agreement for payback of the 30% when the remaining undeveloped 

properties develop. The estimated amount for the 15% requested from the City would be 

$467,574.25. Council should be prepared to discuss this request at the upcoming Council 

meeting. 

            

 

 



 

 

Background and Terms for Request to Star City Council  

To Authorize Funding for SH44/Moyle Intersection 

August 6, 2024 Council Meeting 

• The City of Star, along with landowners Baron Properties (and related entities) and Paul 

Larson (and related entities), have been working toward a signal and related 

improvements at the SH44/Moyle Intersection for several years (“Improvements”).   

• The construction plans for the Improvements have now been approved by ITD and 

ACHD (Attachment A), and the anticipated cost to construct the Improvements has been 

established with an accepted bid of $3,117,161.69 (Attachment B). 

• Baron owns properties near the intersection that are subject to a development agreement 

requiring Baron to contribute 35% of the Improvements cost .  

• Larson also owns properties adjacent and near the intersection that are subject to a 

development agreement requiring Larson to contribute 35% of the Improvements cost.  

• Initially, Larson had planned to construct the Improvements and obtain reimbursement 

from the City for the remaining unfunded 30% through a credit agreement.  

• Now, Baron, Larson, and the City have discussed the following terms to allow Baron to 

take over construction and management of the Improvements: 

o An escrow account will be established for Baron’s use to construct the 

Improvements, with an estimated commencement of late August or early 

September 2024, once all funds and right of way have been contributed. 

o Larson has already contributed $821,175.92 in prior expenditures toward the 

Improvements cost. Larson will contribute into escrow the balance of his 35% 

share of the Improvements cost ($1,091,006.59 - $821,175.92 = 269,830.67). 

Larson will also provide necessary right of way for the Improvements. 

o The City will contribute into escrow 15% of the Improvements cost 

($467,574.25); and 

o Baron will contribute into escrow its 35% share of the Improvements cost 

($1,091,006.59), plus the remaining unfunded 15% ($467,574.25), which is 

eligible for reimbursement to Baron pursuant to a credit agreement as new 

development occurs that benefits from the Improvements. 

o Any contributions that exceed the ultimate actual expenditures for the 

Improvements will be reimbursed to the parties consistent with the percentages of 

their contributions. 

• The parties request City Council authorization for: (1) The City to contribute $467,574.25 

into escrow; and (2) to authorize the City attorney to finalize the terms of the Credit 

Agreement with Baron (Draft Agreement, Attachment C) and the Mayor to sign. 




